DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
CENTERS FOR MEDICARE & MEDICAID SERVICES

PRINTED: 04/05/2023
FORM APPROVED
OMB NO. 0938-039

STATEMENT OF DEFICIENCIES
AND PLAN OF CORRECTION

X1) PROVIDER/SUPPLIER/CLIA
IDENTIFICATION NUMBER
155758

X2) MULTIPLE CONSTRUCTION

X3) DATE SURVEY

A. BUILDING --
B. WING

COMPLETED
02/23/2023

NAME OF PROVIDER OR SUPPLIER

STREET ADDRESS, CITY, STATE, ZIP COD
102 W POPLAR ST

ASBURY TOWERS HEALTH CARE CENTER

GREENCASTLE, IN 46135

(X4) ID
PREFIX
TAG

SUMMARY STATEMENT OF DEFICIENCIE
(EACH DEFICIENCY MUST BE PRECEDED BY FULL
REGULATORY OR LSC IDENTIFYING INFORMATION

ID
PREFIX
TAG

(EACH CORRECTIVE ACTION SHOULD BE
CROSS-REFERENCED TO THE APPROPRIATE

(X5)
COMPLETION
DEFICTENCY) DATE

PROVIDER'S PLAN OF CORRECTION

E 0000

Bldg. -

E 0039
SS=F
Bldg. -

A Post Survey Revisit (PSR) to the Emergency
Preparedness Survey conducted on 12/13/22 was
conducted by the Indiana Department of Health in
accordance with 42 CFR 483.73.

Survey Date: 02/23/23

Facility Number: 001120
Provider Number: 155758
AIM Number: 200525120

At this PSR survey, Asbury Towers Health Care
Center was found not in compliance with
Emergency Preparedness Requirements for
Medicare and Medicaid Participating Providers
and Suppliers, 42 CFR 483.73

The facility has 48 certified beds. At the time of
the survey, the census was 45.

Quality Review completed on 02/27/23

403.748(d)(2), 416.54
441.184(d)(2), 482.15
483.73(d)(2), 484.102(d)(2), 485.625(d)(2
485.68(d)(2), 485.727(d)(2), 485.920(d)(2
486.360(d)(2), 491.12(d)(2), 494.62(d)(2)
EP Testing Requirements

§416.54(d)(2), §418.113(d)(2), §441.184(d)(2),
§460.84(d)(2), §482.15(d)(2), §483.73(d)(2),
§483.475(d)(2), §484.102(d)(2), §485.68(d)(2),
§485.625(d)(2), §485.727(d)(2), §485.920(d)
(2), §491.12(d)(2), §494.62(d)(2).

d)(2), 418.113
d)(2), 483.475

d)(2
d)(2
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*[For ASCs at §416.54, CORFs at §485.68,
OPO, "Organizations" under §485.727,
CMHCs at §485.920, RHCs/FQHCs at

E 0000
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Any defiencystatement ending with an asterisk (¥) denotes a deficency which the institution may be excused from correcting providing it is determin

other safegaurds provide sufficient protection to the patients. (see instructions.) Except for nursing homes, the findings stated above are disclosable

following the date of survey whether or not a plan of correction is provided. For nursing homes, the above findings and plans of correction are disclo

days following the date these documents are made available to the facility. If deficiencies are cited, an approved plan of correction is requisite to

continued program participation.
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§491.12, and ESRD Facilities at §494.62]:

(2) Testing. The [facility] must conduct
exercises to test the emergency plan
annually. The [facility] must do all of the
following:

(i) Participate in a full-scale exercise that is
community-based every 2 years; or
(A) When a community-based exercise is
not accessible, conduct a facility-based
functional exercise every 2 years; or

(B) If the [facility] experiences an actual
natural or man-made emergency that requires
activation of the emergency plan, the [facility]
is exempt from engaging in its next required
community-based or individual, facility-based
functional exercise following the onset of the
actual event.
(ii) Conduct an additional exercise at least
every 2 years, opposite the year the full-scale
or functional exercise under paragraph (d)(2)
(i) of this section is conducted, that may
include, but is not limited to the following:
(A) A second full-scale exercise that is
community-based or individual, facility-based
functional exercise; or
(B) A mock disaster drill; or
(C) A tabletop exercise or workshop that is
led by a facilitator and includes a group
discussion using a narrated,
clinically-relevant emergency scenario, and a
set of problem statements, directed
messages, or prepared questions designed
to challenge an emergency plan.
(iii) Analyze the [facility's] response to and
maintain documentation of all drills, tabletop
exercises, and emergency events, and revise
the [facility's] emergency plan, as needed.
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*[For Hospices at 418.113(d):]

(2) Testing for hospices that provide care in
the patient's home. The hospice must
conduct exercises to test the emergency
plan at least annually. The hospice must do
the following:

(i) Participate in a full-scale exercise that is
community based every 2 years; or

(A) When a community based exercise is not
accessible, conduct an individual facility
based functional exercise every 2 years; or
(B) If the hospice experiences a natural or
man-made emergency that requires activation
of the emergency plan, the hospital is
exempt from engaging in its next required full
scale community-based exercise or individual
facility-based functional exercise following the
onset of the emergency event.

(i) Conduct an additional exercise every 2
years, opposite the year the full-scale or
functional exercise under paragraph (d)(2)(i)
of this section is conducted, that may
include, but is not limited to the following:

(A) A second full-scale exercise that is
community-based or a facility based
functional exercise; or

(B) A mock disaster drill; or

(C) A tabletop exercise or workshop that is
led by a facilitator and includes a group
discussion using a narrated,
clinically-relevant emergency scenario, and a
set of problem statements, directed
messages, or prepared questions designed
to challenge an emergency plan.

(3) Testing for hospices that provide inpatient
care directly. The hospice must conduct
exercises to test the emergency plan twice
per year. The hospice must do the following:
(i) Participate in an annual full-scale exercise
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that is community-based; or

(A) When a community-based exercise is not
accessible, conduct an annual individual
facility-based functional exercise; or

(B) If the hospice experiences a natural or
man-made emergency that requires activation
of the emergency plan, the hospice is
exempt from engaging in its next required
full-scale community based or facility-based
functional exercise following the onset of the
emergency event.

(ii) Conduct an additional annual exercise
that may include, but is not limited to the
following:

(A) A second full-scale exercise that is
community-based or a facility based
functional exercise; or

(B) A mock disaster drill; or

(C) A tabletop exercise or workshop led by a
facilitator that includes a group discussion
using a narrated, clinically-relevant
emergency scenario, and a set of problem
statements, directed messages, or prepared
questions designed to challenge an
emergency plan.

(iii) Analyze the hospice's response to and
maintain documentation of all drills, tabletop
exercises, and emergency events and revise
the hospice's emergency plan, as needed.

*[For PRFTs at §441.184(d), Hospitals at
§482.15(d), CAHs at §485.625(d):]

(2) Testing. The [PRTF, Hospital, CAH] must
conduct exercises to test the emergency

plan twice per year. The [PRTF, Hospital,
CAH] must do the following:

(i) Participate in an annual full-scale exercise
that is community-based; or

(A) When a community-based exercise is not
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accessible, conduct an annual individual,
facility-based functional exercise; or

(B) If the [PRTF, Hospital, CAH] experiences
an actual natural or man-made emergency
that requires activation of the emergency
plan, the [facility] is exempt from engaging in
its next required full-scale community based
or individual, facility-based functional exercise
following the onset of the emergency event.

(i) Conduct an [additional] annual
exercise or and that may include, but is not
limited to the following:

(A) A second full-scale exercise that is
community-based or individual, a
facility-based functional exercise; or

(B) A mock disaster drill; or

(C) A tabletop exercise or workshop that
is led by a facilitator and includes a group
discussion, using a narrated,
clinically-relevant emergency scenario, and a
set of problem statements, directed
messages, or prepared questions designed
to challenge an emergency plan.

(iii) Analyze the [facility's] response to
and maintain documentation of all drills,
tabletop exercises, and emergency events
and revise the [facility's] emergency plan, as
needed.

*[For PACE at §460.84(d):]

(2) Testing. The PACE organization must
conduct exercises to test the emergency

plan at least annually. The PACE
organization must do the following:

(i) Participate in an annual full-scale exercise
that is community-based; or

(A) When a community-based exercise is not
accessible, conduct an annual individual,
facility-based functional exercise; or

(B) If the PACE experiences an actual natural
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or man-made emergency that requires
activation of the emergency plan, the PACE
is exempt from engaging in its next required
full-scale community based or individual,
facility-based functional exercise following the
onset of the emergency event.

(i) Conduct an additional exercise every
2 years opposite the year the full-scale or
functional exercise under paragraph (d)(2)(i)
of this section is conducted that may include,
but is not limited to the following:
(A) A second full-scale exercise that is
community-based or individual, a facility
based functional exercise; or
(B) A mock disaster drill; or
(C) A tabletop exercise or workshop that is
led by a facilitator and includes a group
discussion, using a narrated,
clinically-relevant emergency scenario, and a
set of problem statements, directed
messages, or prepared questions designed
to challenge an emergency plan.
(iii) Analyze the PACE's response to and
maintain documentation of all drills, tabletop
exercises, and emergency events and revise
the PACE's emergency plan, as needed.

*[For LTC Facilities at §483.73(d):]

(2) The [LTC facility] must conduct exercises
to test the emergency plan at least twice per
year, including unannounced staff drills using
the emergency procedures. The [LTC facility,
ICF/1ID] must do the following:

(i) Participate in an annual full-scale exercise
that is community-based; or

(A) When a community-based exercise is not
accessible, conduct an annual individual,
facility-based functional exercise.

(B) If the [LTC facility] facility experiences an
actual natural or man-made emergency that
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requires activation of the emergency plan, the
LTC facility is exempt from engaging its next
required a full-scale community-based or
individual, facility-based functional exercise
following the onset of the emergency event.
(ii) Conduct an additional annual exercise
that may include, but is not limited to the
following:

(A) A second full-scale exercise that is
community-based or an individual, facility
based functional exercise; or

(B) A mock disaster drill; or

(C) A tabletop exercise or workshop that is
led by a facilitator includes a group
discussion, using a narrated,
clinically-relevant emergency scenario, and a
set of problem statements, directed
messages, or prepared questions designed
to challenge an emergency plan.

(iii) Analyze the [LTC facility] facility's
response to and maintain documentation of
all drills, tabletop exercises, and emergency
events, and revise the [LTC facility] facility's
emergency plan, as needed.

*[For ICF/IIDs at §483.475(d)]:

(2) Testing. The ICF/IID must conduct
exercises to test the emergency plan at least
twice per year. The ICF/IID must do the
following:

(i) Participate in an annual full-scale exercise
that is community-based; or

(A) When a community-based exercise is not
accessible, conduct an annual individual,
facility-based functional exercise; or.

(B) If the ICF/IID experiences an actual
natural or man-made emergency that requires
activation of the emergency plan, the ICF/IID
is exempt from engaging in its next required
full-scale community-based or individual,
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facility-based functional exercise following the
onset of the emergency event.

(ii) Conduct an additional annual exercise
that may include, but is not limited to the
following:

(A) A second full-scale exercise that is
community-based or an individual,
facility-based functional exercise; or

(B) A mock disaster drill; or

(C) A tabletop exercise or workshop that is
led by a facilitator and includes a group
discussion, using a narrated,
clinically-relevant emergency scenario, and a
set of problem statements, directed
messages, or prepared questions designed
to challenge an emergency plan.

(iii) Analyze the ICF/IID's response to and
maintain documentation of all drills, tabletop
exercises, and emergency events, and revise
the ICF/IID's emergency plan, as needed.

*[For HHAs at §484.102]

(d)(2) Testing. The HHA must conduct
exercises to test the emergency plan at
least annually. The HHA must do the
following:

(i) Participate in a full-scale exercise that is
community-based; or

(A) When a community-based exercise
is not accessible, conduct an annual
individual, facility-based functional exercise
every 2 years; or.

(B) If the HHA experiences an actual
natural or man-made emergency that requires
activation of the emergency plan, the HHA is
exempt from engaging in its next required
full-scale community-based or individual,
facility based functional exercise following the
onset of the emergency event.

(ii) Conduct an additional exercise every 2
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years, opposite the year the full-scale or
functional exercise under paragraph (d)(2)(i)

of this section is conducted, that may
include, but is not limited to the following:

(A) A second full-scale exercise that is
community-based or an individual,
facility-based functional exercise; or

(B) A mock disaster drill; or

(C) A tabletop exercise or workshop that
is led by a facilitator and includes a group
discussion, using a narrated,
clinically-relevant emergency scenario, and a
set of problem statements, directed
messages, or prepared questions designed
to challenge an emergency plan.

(iii) Analyze the HHA's response to and
maintain documentation of all drills, tabletop
exercises, and emergency events, and revise
the HHA's emergency plan, as needed.

*[For OPOs at §486.360]

(d)(2) Testing. The OPO must conduct
exercises to test the emergency plan. The
OPO must do the following:

(i) Conduct a paper-based, tabletop exercise
or workshop at least annually. A tabletop
exercise is led by a facilitator and includes a
group discussion, using a narrated, clinically
relevant emergency scenario, and a set of
problem statements, directed messages, or
prepared questions designed to challenge an
emergency plan. If the OPO experiences an
actual natural or man-made emergency that
requires activation of the emergency plan, the
OPO is exempt from engaging in its next
required testing exercise following the onset
of the emergency event.

(i) Analyze the OPOQ's response to and
maintain documentation of all tabletop
exercises, and emergency events, and revise
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the [RNHCI's and OPO's] emergency plan, as
needed.
*[ RNCHls at §403.748]:
(d)(2) Testing. The RNHCI must conduct
exercises to test the emergency plan. The
RNHCI must do the following:
(i) Conduct a paper-based, tabletop exercise
at least annually. A tabletop exercise is a
group discussion led by a facilitator, using a
narrated, clinically-relevant emergency
scenario, and a set of problem statements,
directed messages, or prepared questions
designed to challenge an emergency plan.
(i) Analyze the RNHCI's response to and
maintain documentation of all tabletop
exercises, and emergency events, and revise
the RNHCI's emergency plan, as needed.
Based on record review and interview, the facility E 0039 No residents were harmed by the 02/27/2023
failed to ensure exercises to ensure the emergency failure to complete the facility wide
plan were in accordance with 42 CFR 483.73(d)(2). exercise.
This deficient practice could affect all occupants. Emergency preparedness policies
were reviewed during January
Findings include: QAPI meeting.
A tabletop exercise meeting was
Based on record review of the facility's Emergency held on January 26th,2023 to
Preparedness Plan on 12/13/22 between 9:30 a.m. discuss scheduling facility wide
to 10:03 a.m. with the Maintenance Director exercises. During meeting it was
present, there was no documentation of concluded that March 16th at
community-based exercise, facility-based exercise, 10:00am we would complete a
or an after actions report for an exercise of any facility wide exercise for fire
kind. Based on interview at the time of record evacuation. Scenario would be a
review, the Maintenance Director said that he was resident fell asleep while smoking
unaware of the requirement for a in their room causing a fire. It was
community-based exercise, a facility-based also discussed that a second
exercise, or an after actions report for said facility wide exercise for an active
exercises. During the exit conference with the shooter would be scheduled for
facility Administrator and the Maintenance August 2023. The tabletop for fire
Director at 1:45 p.m., no additional information or evacuation was scheduled for
evidence could be provided contrary to this February 16th, 2023, to prepare for
FORM CMS-2567(02-99) Previous Versions Obsolete Event ID: NOY822 Facility ID: 001120 If continuation sheet ~ Page 10 of 14
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deficient finding. facility wide exercise. This was
rescheduled for February 27th,
Based on record review on 02/23/23 at 10:45 a.m. 2023, due to conflicts with QAPI
during a post survey revisit, the facility still had meeting. During the tabletop
no documentation of a community-based exercise, exercise on February 27th, 2023,
facility-based exercise, or an after actions report a tornado warning was issued for
for an exercise of any kind. Based on an interview Greencastle, IN and sirens were
at the time of record review, the Maintenance activated. Facility utilized this
Director stated that the facility had not yet event as our facility wide exercise.
completed the aforementioned drill but had it Monitoring will be ongoing by the
scheduled for March of 2023. Maintenance Director or designee.
This deficiency was initially cited on 12/13/22. The
facility failed to implement a systemic plan of
correction to prevent recurrence.
K 0000
Bldg. 02
A Post Survey Revisit (PSR) to the Life Safety K 0000
Code Recertification and State Licensure Survey
conducted on 12/13/22 was conducted by the
Indiana Department of Health in accordance with
42 CFR 483.90(a).
Survey Date: 02/23/23
Facility Number: 001120
Provider Number: 155758
AIM Number: 200525120
At this PSR survey, Asbury Towers Healthcare
Center was found not in compliance with
Requirements for Participation in
Medicare/Medicaid, 42 CFR Subpart 483.70(a),
Life Safety from Fire, and the 2012 edition of the
National Fire Protection Association (NFPA) 101,
Life Safety Code (LSC), Chapter 19, Existing
Health Care Occupancies and 410 IAC 16.2.
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K 0311
SS=E
Bldg. 02

This facility was located on the ground and first
floors of a four-story building and surveyed as
one building since the construction dates of the
original building and an addition were built prior
to March 1, 2003. The facility was determined to
be of Type II (222) construction and was fully
sprinklered. The facility identifies the ground floor
as HCC Comprehensive Care Unit 1 and the first
floor as Comprehensive Care Unit II. The facility
also has a partial basement. The facility has a fire
alarm system with smoke detection in the
corridors and spaces open to the corridors. All
resident rooms have battery powered smoke
detection except rooms 9 through 22 on the south
wing of the ground floor. Hard wired smoke
detectors in resident rooms 117, 118, and rooms 9
through 22 alarm at the smoke detector only. The
facility has a capacity of 48 and had a census of
41 at the time of this survey.

All areas where the residents have customary
access were sprinklered and all areas which
provide facility services were sprinklered except
for the Electrical room on North wing hall on the
ground floor.

Quality Review completed on 02/27/23

NFPA 101

Vertical Openings - Enclosure

Vertical Openings - Enclosure

2012 EXISTING

Stairways, elevator shafts, light and
ventilation shafts, chutes, and other vertical
openings between floors are enclosed with
construction having a fire resistance rating of
at least 1 hour. An atrium may be used in
accordance with 8.6.

19.3.1.1 through 19.3.1.6

If all vertical openings are properly enclosed
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with construction providing at least a 2-hour
fire resistance rating, also check this
box.
Based on observation and interview, the facility K 0311 No residents were harmed by the 02/28/2023
failed to ensure the protection of 1 of 6 stairwells delay in replacing first floor
in accordance with 19.3.1. LSC 19.3.1.1 states stairwell door.
where enclosure is provided, the construction Maintenance Director ordered
shall have not less than a 1-hour fire resistance proper fire rated door from vendor
rating. LSC 8.3.4.2 states the fire protection rating on January 18th, 2023. The door
for opening protectives shall be in accordance was delivered and installed on
with Table 8.3.4.2 except as otherwise permitted in January 31st, 2023. After installing
8.3.4.3 or 8.3.4.4. Table 8.3.4.2 requires fire door the door the vendor realized that it
assemblies in vertical shafts, including stairways, was the wrong size. The vendor
to have a 1-hour fire resistance rating. LSC 8.3.4.3 had to send it back to be resized
states existing fire door assemblies having a so it would fit in the doorframe.
minimum ¥-hour fire protection rating shall be The vendor gave an approximated
permitted to continue to be used in vertical time frame of 2 weeks for the new
openings and exit enclosures in lieu of the door to arrive. The proper door was
minimum1-hour fire protection rating required in delivered and installed on 2/28/23.
Table 8.3.4.2. This deficient practice could affect Monitoring will be ongoing by the
14 residents, 4 staff and 2 visitors. Maintenance Director or
designee.
Findings include:
Based on observations with the Maintenance
Director during a tour of the facility on 12/13/22 at
12:41 p.m., the first-floor center stairway door was
only rated at 30 minutes. This was verified by
Maintenance Director at the time of observations.
After checking the other five stairwell doors on
the ground and first floors, it was noted that all
five other doors were rated at 90 minutes or 1.50
hours. During the exit conference with the facility
Administrator and the Maintenance Director at
1:45 p.m., no additional information or evidence
could be provided contrary to this deficient
finding.
Based on observations made on 02/23/23 at 10:50
a.m. during a post survey revisit tour, the facility
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still had not replaced the first-floor center stairwell
door. Based on an interview at the time of record
review, the Maintenance Director stated that the
facility had not yet completed the replacement of
the door because the vendor they hired ordered

the wrong sized door and they had to take it back
and resize it to correctly fit in the doorframe. The
Maintenance Director also stated that the
adjustment was estimated to take approximately
two weeks.

This deficiency was initially cited on 12/13/22. The
facility failed to implement a systemic plan of
correction to prevent recurrence.

3.1-19(b)
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